
 

REGULAR MEETING 
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 

PLAN COMMISSION 
 

July 7, 2014 
7:30 P.M. 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

Greg Trzupek, Chairman Mike Stratis Greg Scott 
 Dehn Grunsten Mary Praxmarer 
 Robert Grela Prashant Sheth, Alternate 
 Luisa Hoch  

 

II. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES 

A. June 2, 2014 Plan Commission Regular Meeting 

 

III. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Z-06-2014: 15W150 South Frontage Road and 15W211 75th Street (Anthem Memory 
Care); Text Amendment, Special Use, Variations and Findings of Fact 
 
Requests an amendment to Section IX.D.2 of the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance to add 
Dementia Care Community Facility or some such similar land use to the list of special uses 
in the O-2 District; for a special use as per the aforesaid amendment to permit a Dementia 
Care Community Facility on the subject property; a variation from Section XI.C.8 of the 
Zoning Ordinance to permit parking located between the building and the front lot line; 
and a variation from Section XI.D.7.q to permit a 48,200 square foot building without the 
required loading berth.   
 

B. Z-07-2014: 60 Shore Drive (Forklift Exchange); Special Use and Variations 
 
Requests special use as per Section X.F.2.a and X.F.2.k to permit sales of new construction 
equipment with outdoor display of product, a variation from Section XI.C.8 to permit 
parking in front of the building, and an amendment to Section X.F.2.k to permit outdoor 
display in the front yard. 
 

IV. CORRESPONDENCE 

A. Board Report – June 9, 2014 and June 23, 2014 

 



July 7, 2014 
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals 
Page 2 of 2 

 
V. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

A. S-04-2014: 15W150 South Frontage Road (Anthem Memory Care); Sign Variation 

B. S-05-2014: 60 Shore Drive (Forklift Exchange); Sign Variation 

 

VI. FUTURE SCHEDULED MEETINGS 

A. July 21, 2014: The following hearings are scheduled: 

 Z-08-2014: 11411 German Church Road (Malek); Rezoning from R-1 to R-3 
 V-03-2014: 15W281 91st Street (Sedlacek); Garage Setback Variation 
 Z-09-2014: Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment – Accessory Building Setbacks 

B. August 4, 2014: The filing deadline for this meeting is July 14, 2014. 

 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PLEASE NOTE: All recommendations from the Plan Commission are advisory and are submitted to the 
Mayor and Board of Trustees for review and final action.  Any item being voted on at this Plan Commission 
meeting will be forwarded to the Mayor and Board of Trustees for consideration at their July 14, 2014 
Regular Meeting beginning at 7:00 P.M.  Commissioner Grela is the Plan Commission representative for the 
July 14, 2014 Board meeting. 



PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 

MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF  

JUNE 2, 2014 

1. ROLL CALL 

The Regular Meeting of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals was called to 
order at 7:30 P.M. at the Burr Ridge Village Hall, 7660 County Line Road, Burr Ridge, 
Illinois by Chairman Trzupek.   

ROLL CALL was noted as follows:   
PRESENT: 6 –Hoch, Praxmarer, Sheth, Grela, Scott, and Trzupek  
ABSENT: 2 – Stratis and Grunsten 
Also present was Community Development Director Doug Pollock.   

2. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES 

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Praxmarer and SECONDED by 
Commissioner Grela to approve minutes of the May 5, 2014 Plan Commission meeting. 

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   

AYES:  6 – Praxmarer, Grela, Scott, Hoch, Sheth, and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 6-0. 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

There were no public hearings scheduled. 
 
4. CORRESPONDENCE 
 
There were no questions or comments regarding the Board Report or the Building Report. 
 
5. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
A. S-03-2014: 6900 Veterans Boulevard (CNH); Traffic Directional Signs 

Variations 
 
Chairman Trzupek asked Mr. Pollock to summarize this request.  Mr. Pollock 
summarized the request as follows: CNH seeks approval to erect three traffic directional 
signs each of which exceeds the maximum permitted sign area.  The Sign Ordinance 
permits an unlimited number of traffic directional signs but restricts the size of each sign 



06/02/2014 Regular Meeting 
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
Page 2 of 5 

to 4 feet in height and 4 square feet in area.  The proposed signs would each be 7 feet tall.  
Two of the signs would be 24.5 square feet and one would be 19.25 square feet.   
 
Mr. Pollock added that this is a very large property and that the existing signs are far less 
than the maximum permitted area of signs and that the proposed traffic directional signs 
would be internal to the property.  Mr. Pollock said that the staff recommends approval of 
the sign variations. 
 
The petitioner was represented by its property manager, Mr. Kevin Waller.  Mr. Waller 
said he had nothing to add to the staff summary of this request. 
 
Chairman Trzupek asked for questions from the public and there were none.  He then 
asked for questions from the Plan Commission. 
 
In response to Commissioner Scott, Mr. Waller said the signs would not be lit.  He said 
they were originally designed to be lit but that CNH decided against illumination. 
 
Commissioner Grela said that due to the size of the parcel, he does not see any problems 
with the signs. 
 
Chairman Trzupek asked about other traffic directional sign variations.  Mr. Pollock said 
that Harris Bank and Chase Bank originally asked for such variations but changed their 
plans to comply.  He said those properties did receive variations for other signs. 
 
There being no further questions or comments, Chairman Trzupek asked for a motion. 

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Hoch and SECONDED by Commissioner 
Scott to recommend that the Board of Trustees approve the sign variations as requested 
by S-03-2014 subject to no additional principal signs be added to the property.   

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   

AYES:  6 – Hoch, Scott, Praxmarer, Grela, Sheth, and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 6-0. 
 
B. PC-03-2014: 140 Tower Drive (AMS Mechanical); Informal Review 
 
Chairman Trzupek asked Mr. Pollock to summarize this request.  Mr. Pollock 
summarized the request as follows: The owner of the property at 140 Tower Drive, AMS 
Mechanical, is considering an addition to their building to accommodate growth and with 
the intent of staying at this location in Burr Ridge.  The proposed addition would be 
located 15.5 feet from the east side lot line rather than the required 40 feet and the total 
floor area would be 68,304 square feet (0.443 FAR) rather than the permitted 61,750 
square feet (0.4 FAR). 
 



06/02/2014 Regular Meeting 
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
Page 3 of 5 

Mr. Pollock stated that this is an informal discussion and anything said by the Plan 
Commission regarding potential variations is tentative pending the public hearing. 
 
Mr. John Berzanskis introduced himself as the owner of the business.  He said his 
business needs more room and they want to stay at this location in Burr Ridge.  He said 
that at this time he is exploring his options.  Mr. Berzanskis said the business has been at 
this location for 15 years and would like to stay for another 15 years. 
 
Chairman Trzupek asked why the addition was to side when there appears to be more 
room in the back.  Mr. Berzanskis said that relocating the loading to the back would 
interfere with parking and that the internal operations are more conducive to a side yard 
addition. 
 
Chairman Trzupek asked how many more employees would be accommodated by the 
addition, Mr. Berzanskis said they currently have 65 employees at this location with 15 to 
30 part time people and they would expect to add about 17 more employees. 
 
Commissioner Scott asked about an addition to the west side of the building.  Mr. 
Berzanskis said there is parking on the west side and if they built to the west, the east side 
would not accommodate the same number of parking spaces.   
 
Commissioner Grela said that he would like to see the business stay in Burr Ridge but is 
struggling with the proposed 62% decrease in the side yard setback.  He said he would 
like to see what the neighbor would say about a side yard setback variation. 
 
Commissioner Praxmarer noted there appears to be lots of room in the back for an 
addition.  Mr. Berzanskis said that they would lose up to 30 parking spaces and he wants 
to maintain a balanced front façade.  In response to another question from Commissioner 
Praxmarer, Mr. Berzanskis said that the trucks deliver pipe and similar material for the 
hearing and air conditioning business.  
 
Commissioner Sheth said he would too would like to know what the neighbor thinks of 
the side yard variation and noted that it is a substantial variation from the code. 
 
Commissioner Hoch said that the building was beautiful and noted that there is a parking 
lot adjacent to the side yard where they are proposing a variation.  She added, however, 
that one of the reasons this industrial park is attractive is the green space surrounding the 
buildings and she would be concerned about reducing that green space to the side of this 
building.  She suggested making the encroachment smaller or pushing it further from the 
street. 
 
Chairman Trzupek noted that they would be removing two driveways and only creating 
one new driveway so there would be some increase in green space in the front yard.  He 
said that the setback variation may create an undesirable precedent but that it may also be 
the least intrusive of the various alternatives for expanding the building.  He asked about 
a west side addition rather than an east side addition as there is more area on the west 



06/02/2014 Regular Meeting 
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
Page 4 of 5 

side.  Mr. Berzanskis replied that he would be concerned about impacts on parking and 
on the interior flow of operations.   
 
Mr. Berzanskis asked if a greater setback from the street would help for the east side 
addition.  Chairman Trzupek said it may help a little.   
 
There being no further questions, Chairman Trzupek summarized the Plan Commission’s 
review stating that there may be some justification for the FAR variation because some of 
the additional floor area is in second floor offices which does not increase the impervious 
surfaces but that satisfying the requirements for a setback variation would be more 
difficult.   
 
C. PC-04-2014: Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment – Accessory Residential 

Structures 
 
Mr. Pollock reported that the Board has directed the Plan Commission to conduct a 
public hearing to consider an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance regarding the rear yard 
setback for an accessory building.  He said that in response to complaints about a 
building under construction, Trustee Bolos asked staff if the setback was correct.  Mr. 
Pollock said that in this case, the building met the minimum 10 foot rear yard setback.  
He said that although the maximum size of an accessory building varies by zoning district 
and generally ranges from 750 to 2,500 square feet, the rear yard setback is a standard 10 
feet in most residential districts.  He said the consideration would be to require a larger 
rear yard setback for larger buildings.   
 
After some questions and discussion by the Plan Commission, Mr. Pollock concluded 
that the public hearing would be scheduled for an upcoming meeting. 
 
D. PC-05-2014: Annual Appointment of Plan Commission Vice Chairperson 
 
Mr. Pollock said that the rules of the Plan Commission require the appointment of a Vice 
Chair each year and that the Plan Commission nominates a Commissioner for the 
position and the Board appoints the Vice Chair.  He said the only duty of the Vice Chair 
is act as Chair in the Chairman’s absence.   

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Hoch and SECONDED by Commissioner 
Praxmarer to recommend that the Board of Trustees appoint Commissioner Greg Scott as 
Vice Chairman for a one year term expiring on June 9, 2015.  The MOTION CARRIED 
by a unanimous voice vote of the Commission. 

6. FUTURE SCHEDULED MEETINGS 
 
Mr. Pollock stated that there are no public hearings scheduled for June 16, 2014. 
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Scott and SECONDED by Commissioner 
Sheth to cancel the June 16, 2014 meeting.  The MOTION CARRIED by a unanimous 
voice vote of the Commission. 



06/02/2014 Regular Meeting 
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
Page 5 of 5 

 
7. ADJOURNMENT 
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Sheth and SECONDED by Commissioner 
Praxmarer to ADJOURN the meeting at 8:30 p.m.  ALL MEMBERS VOTING AYE, 
the meeting was adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 
 
 

Respectfully 
Submitted:  

  

July 7, 2014 

 J. Douglas Pollock, AICP 

 



 

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 

STAFF REPORT AND SUMMARY 

 

Z-06-2014; 15W150 South Frontage Road (Anthem Memory Care); Requests an amendment 
to Section IX.D.2 of the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance to add Dementia Care Community 
Facility or some such similar land use to the list of special uses in the O-2 District; for a special 
use as per the aforesaid amendment to permit a Dementia Care Community Facility on the 
subject property; a variation from Section XI.C.8 of the Zoning Ordinance to permit parking 
located between the building and the front lot line; and a variation from Section XI.D.7.q to 
permit a 48,200 square foot building without the required loading berth.     

 
Prepared For: Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission / Zoning Board of Appeals 
   Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 

Prepared By:  Doug Pollock, AICP 
   Community Development Director 
 

Date of Hearing: July 7, 2014 
 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

 
Petitioner: 
 

Anthem Memory Care 

Property Owner: 
 

MSJ Properties 

Petitioner’s Status: 
 

Contract Purchaser 

Land Use Plan: 
 

Within a “Complementary 
Area” as per the 2005 
Downtown Burr Ridge 
Sub-Area Plan 

   
 
Existing Zoning: 
 

 
O-2 Office and Hotel 
District 

Existing Land Use: 
 

Single-Family Residence 
and Vacant Lots 
 

Site Area: 
 

4.37 Acres 

Subdivision: 
 

None 



Staff Report and Summary 
Z-06-2014:  15W150 South Frontage Road (Anthem Memory Care) 
Page 2 of 5 
 

 
SUMMARY 

 
The petitioner seeks to construct a one-story building consisting of 48,200 square feet of floor 
area for a residential and health care facility for people with dementia.  The building would 
contain 64 rooms and be staffed 24 hours per day.  The facility will be licensed by the State of 
Illinois as an assisted living facility.  Access to the property will be restricted to South Frontage 
Road. 
 
Compliance with the Zoning Ordinance 
 
The existing zoning does not specifically list this use as a permitted or special use.  The closest 
land use category in the O-2 District is “Senior Housing with a combination of independent living 
units, assisted living units, and skilled care facilities” which is listed as a special use.  The proposed 
use would provide skilled care and assisted living but would not have any independent living units.  
Thus, an amendment to the O-2 District is necessary.  Since the existing senior housing category is 
already a special use, the legal notice assumes that any new listing would also be a special use.   
 
The petitioner is also seeking variations for the location of parking and to eliminate the requirement 
for a loading berth.  Parking is not permitted in a front yard of an O-2 District.  The site plan 
proposes that 18 of the 39 parking spaces be located in front of the building.  The Zoning Ordinance 
also requires that a building consisting of 10,000 to 60,000 square feet be provided with one loading 
berth.  The petition seeks to waive the requirement for a loading berth.  Loading activities would 
occur via a service door located on the south side of the building. 
 
Site and Building Plan Review 
 
All new buildings in the O-2 District require plan review by the Plan Commission and approval by 
the Board of Trustees.  For the plan review, the petitioner has submitted a site plan, landscaping 
plan, and building elevations.  Preliminary engineering has also been submitted to the Village 
Engineer for review and the Village Engineer has tentatively approved the final engineering plan for 
compliance with applicable ordinances.   
 
The primary features of the submitted plans include the following: 

 The building is one story with a pitched, shingled roof.  The exterior walls have a brick base 
with fiber cement siding above the brick.  There are windows on all four sides of the 
building. 

 Access to the site is limited to South Frontage Road.  The petitioner has provided a letter 
from the Illinois Department of Transportation indicating that IDOT will issue a permit for 
access to South Frontage Road provided that the property owner will maintain the triangle 
of right of way that exists between the street and the private property.  The petitioner has 
agreed with this requirement. 

 On-site stormwater detention is provided and the Village Engineer reports that sufficient 
volume is provided as required by code.  Detention ponds are located on the northeast and 
west side of the building.    



Staff Report and Summary 
Z-06-2014:  15W150 South Frontage Road (Anthem Memory Care) 
Page 3 of 5 
 

 All perimeter building setbacks are met or exceeded.  The building is located in excess of 70 
feet from the south and east lot lines (which abut residential districts).  A green strip of 33 
feet is provided adjacent to the east lot line and a 46 foot deep green strip is provided 
adjacent to the south lot line.  The Zoning Ordinance requires a 40 foot building setback and 
a 30 foot green strip adjacent to a residential district. 

 The existing trees and landscaping are to be preserved along the east and south lot lines. 

 An enclosure for a stand-by generator and trash dumpster is located off the driveway at the 
southwest corner of the building. 

 
Compatibility with Surrounding Zoning and Development 
 
The block in which the subject property is located includes two hotels, two, one-story office 
buildings and a three-story office building, and two single-family residences.  The zoning within 
this block includes B-2 Business District, O-2 Office and Hotel District, T-1 Transitional 
District, and R-3 Single-Family Residential District.  The block is adjacent to I-55 and the 
County Line Road interchange except to the south it is adjacent to a residential neighborhood 
within the R-2A Single-Family Residence District. 
 
Compliance with the Comprehensive Plan 
 
The 2005 Downtown Burr Ridge Sub-Area Plan identifies this block as a complementary area to 
the downtown.  The 1999 Future Land Use Plan recommends office uses for this property.    
 
Findings of Fact and Recommendations 
 
The petitioner has submitted findings of fact for the special use which may be adopted if the Plan 
Commission is in agreement with those findings.  The petitioner has not submitted findings for 
the variations.  The following is a summary of each of the requests included in this petition. 
 
Text Amendment – Dementia Care Community Facility; The proposed use is comparable to 
the existing use category for Senior Housing which is listed as a special use.  The existing 
category requires that a senior housing use include all of the elements listed – skilled care, 
assisted living, and independent living.  Rather than adding a new use category, staff 
recommends that the existing category be modified as follows: 
 

“Senior Housing with a combination of independent living units, assisted living units, and or 
skilled care facilities” 

 
Special Use – Senior Housing; A special use is requested for a senior housing facility with assisted 
living and skilled care facilities.  It is anticipated that the proposed use would not generate 
significant traffic, noise, or light.  The building is a one story building that would be screened with 
landscaping from the adjacent residential areas.  Although not an ideal complementary use to the 
Downtown Sub-Area, a senior housing facility would not be expected to adversely affect the goals 
of the Downtown Plan or the Comprehensive Plan.   In summary, it would appear that this use 
would not adversely impact any of the surrounding area and would be compatible with the 
Comprehensive Plan.  Therefore, staff recommends approval of a special use for Senior Housing 



Staff Report and Summary 
Z-06-2014:  15W150 South Frontage Road (Anthem Memory Care) 
Page 4 of 5 
 
with independent living units, assisted living units, or skilled care facilities subject to compliance 
with the submitted plans. 
 
Special Use – Plan Approval; The site plan, landscaping plan, and building elevations require 
review by the Plan Commission and approval by the Board of Trustees.  With the exceptions of the 
variations summarized below, the plans comply with the Zoning Ordinance.  Although final 
landscaping plans will need to be reviewed by the Village’s consulting forester at the time of permit 
application, sufficient landscaping screening will be provided.  The building is a one story building 
with brick and fiber board siding.  Additional details regarding the screening of the dumpster and 
generator pad are also necessary. 
 
The site plan limits access to the site from South Frontage Road via a triangle of land owned by 
IDOT (IDOT will not vacate this land).  The petitioner has a letter from IDOT indicating they will 
issue a permit for access through this land subject to the Village accepting responsibility for this 
road.  That responsibility should be transferred to the petitioner and any future owners of the senior 
care property. 
 
Based on the above considerations, staff recommends approval of the site plan, landscaping plan, 
and building elevations subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Compliance with the submitted plans. 
 

2. Staff review of the screening of the dumpster and generator pad to ensure compliance with 
the Zoning Ordinance. 
 

3. Final landscaping plan review by staff including preservation of existing trees along the 
south and east property lines and enhancement of the screening along these lot lines as may 
be determined necessary by staff. 
 

4. Maintenance by the property owner of the IDOT right of way located between the subject 
property and South Frontage Road. 

 
Variation – Front Yard Parking; The site plan includes 18 parking spaces located in front of the 
building.  The O-2 District prohibits parking in any yard between a building and a street.  The 
property may be considered unique because it is a through lot with streets abutting the front and rear 
lot lines, the location of the “extra” IDOT land on the north side of the property, and the strong 
preference for access from South Frontage Road thus keeping access and other activities away from 
the residential district to the south.   Given the nature of the proposed use, parking is necessary near 
the front door of the building.  Additionally, other uses within this block have front yard parking 
including the adjacent office building and hotel.  Based on these considerations, staff recommends 
approval of the variation to permit 18 parking spaces located in the front yard.   
 
Variation – Waiver of Loading Berth; The Zoning Ordinance requires a specific number of 
loading berths for non-residential buildings based on land use and floor area.  A specific loading 
requirement is not listed for senior housing.  For non-listed uses, the Zoning Ordinance requires one 
loading berth for a 10,000 to 60,000 square foot building.   
 



Staff Report and Summary 
Z-06-2014:  15W150 South Frontage Road (Anthem Memory Care) 
Page 5 of 5 
 
Regular loading for this use is limited to food and healthcare supplies which are typically delivered 
in smaller vehicles that do not require a loading berth.  Staff concurs that a loading berth is not 
necessary for this use but prefers that the Village consider a text amendment for all senior housing 
facilities of this size.  Based on this recommendation, staff does not object to a variation being 
granted for this use pending future consideration of a text amendment. 
 
 

















 





 



 



 

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 

STAFF REPORT AND SUMMARY 

 

Z-07-2014; 60 Shore Drive (Forklift Exchange); Requests special use as per Section X.F.2.a 
and X.F.2.k to permit sales of new construction equipment with outside display of product, a 
variation from Section XI.C.8 to permit parking in front of the building, and an amendment 
to Section X.F.2.k to permit outside display in the front yard. 

 
Prepared For: Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission / Zoning Board of Appeals 
   Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 

Prepared By:  Doug Pollock, AICP 
   Community Development Director 
 

Date of Hearing: July 7, 2014 
 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

 
Petitioner: 
 

Designhaus, Inc. on behalf of 
Forklift Exchange 
 

Property Owner: 
 

Barnett Capital 

Petitioner’s 
Status: 
 

Contract Purchaser 

Land Use Plan: 
 

Recommends Light 
Industrial Uses 

   
 
Existing Zoning: 
 

 
GI General Industrial District 
 
 

Existing Land Use: 
 

Industrial Building 
 
 

Site Area: 
 

2.2 Acres 
 

Subdivision: 
 

Hinsdale Industrial Park 



Staff Report and Summary 
Z-07-2014:  60 Shore Drive (Forklift Exchange) 
Page 2 of 4 
 

 
SUMMARY 

 
The subject property is located at the southwest corner of Shore Drive and South Frontage Road.  
The property is improved with a 60,000 square foot industrial building.  The petitioner proposes 
to purchase the building and operate an equipment sales business from this location.  The 
business would occupy the majority of the building.  The petitioner would also like to provide 
front yard parking for customers and display three pieces of equipment in the front yard.   
 
Compliance with the Comprehensive Plan 
 
The Comprehensive Plan recommends light industrial uses for this property and the surrounding 
area.  Limited commercial use may be considered compatible with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Compliance with the Zoning Ordinance 
 
The petitioner seeks special use approvals and variations as follows: 
 
 Special Use approval as per Section X.F.2.a which lists “Automobile and truck and 

equipment sales, rental and service” as a special use in the GI District.  The proposed use 
would be limited to the sale of material handling equipment.  Types of equipment include 
forklifts, mini excavators, telescoping material handlers and similar pieces. 
 

 Special Use approval and an amendment to Section X.F.2 which lists “Outside Storage; 
provided that storage is located to the rear of the principal building, is screened on all sides, 
does not exceed the height of the screening, and is not visible from any adjacent streets or 
residential areas” as a special use in the GI District.  The petitioner seeks approval to display 
up to three pieces of equipment in the front yard. 

 
 Variation from Section XI.C.8 to permit parking in front of the building. Parking is restricted 

to the side and rear of the building. 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Zoning and Development 
 
Three special uses for retail sales have been granted for this building,  Two of those are for the 
existing car sales businesses and one was for a jewelry store that is no longer at this location.  
The special uses for the car sales did not include outside display of vehicles.  There are and have 
been other retail businesses within this industrial park. 
 
There are also other properties within this area that include front yard parking.  The adjacent 
property to the east is occupied by Personalization Mall and includes parking in the yard abutting 
South Frontage Road.  Other buildings along South Frontage Road located to the west also have 
front yard parking.   
 
Special uses have also been granted for businesses to store equipment and trailers outside of the 
building.  Attached is a list of those special uses.  The list includes the storage of construction 



Staff Report and Summary 
Z-07-2014:  60 Shore Drive (Forklift Exchange) 
Page 3 of 4 
 
equipment and vehicles adjacent to South Frontage Road at 150 Shore Drive (two properties to 
the west of the subject property). 
 
Findings of Fact and Recommendations 
 
The petitioner has submitted findings of fact which may be approved if the Plan Commission is 
in agreement with those findings.  In regards to each request, staff offers the following 
recommendations:   
 
Special Use for Equipment Sales:  Retail sales of equipment is listed as a special use in the GI 
District and would seem best suited for a General Industrial District rather than a Business 
District where most other retail uses are located.  Additionally, there is precedent for retail 
businesses at this location and in scattered locations within this industrial park.  Based on all of 
the above, staff recommends approval of the special use for equipment sales. 
 
Special Use and Text Amendment for Outside Display: The petitioner seeks to display three 
pieces of equipment in the front yard of the property.  The Zoning Ordinance lists outside storage 
as a special use but requires that the storage be located in the rear yard.  The petitioner would 
place three pieces of new equipment on display on the front yard and move those pieces inside 
the building at night.  The equipment would be located on a hard surfaced area adjacent to the 
proposed front yard parking.  The existing classification for outside storage would have to be 
modified to accommodate the proposed front yard display of equipment and a special use granted 
for the outside display.   
 
The proposed outside display is different from the other special uses for outside storage in this 
area in that it would be limited to three pieces of equipment displayed in the front yard only 
during business hours.  The other special uses have generally allowed outside, overnight storage 
of 10 to 15 vehicles located in a side or rear yard.  The special uses for the car sales businesses at 
this location did not request outside storage or display and the terms of the special use approvals 
prohibited outside display and storage. 
 
It is acknowledged that consideration of this text amendment and special use for outside display 
of equipment may be inconsistent with the prohibition on outside display of vehicles for the car 
sales businesses.  However, those businesses did not request outside display.  If this petition is 
approved, the only precedent set will be to allow up to three vehicles during business hours only. 
 
Like the car sales businesses, the proposed business will provide a public benefit as it will 
generate sales taxes for the community.  Further, the business is consistent with an industrial 
park and with the outside display will be limited and is not within the vicinity of a residential 
area.  Therefore, staff recommends approval of an amendment to Section X.F.2.a as follows: 
 

Automobile and truck and equipment sales, rental and service with limited outside 
display of equipment or vehicles for sale during business hours. 

 
If the aforesaid text amendment is approved, the special use approval for the proposed business 
should be subject to the following conditions:  
 



Staff Report and Summary 
Z-07-2014:  60 Shore Drive (Forklift Exchange) 
Page 4 of 4 
 

1. Outside display shall be limited to three pieces of new equipment including 
forklifts, mini excavators, telescoping material handlers and similar pieces. 
 

2. The outside display shall be located on the hard surface as shown on the submitted 
plans. 

 
3. The outside display shall be limited to Forklift Exchange and shall become null and 

void at such time that Forklift Exchange no longer occupies the property. 
 

Variation for Front Yard Parking:  The building currently has parking in the rear and side 
yards.  The petitioner seeks to construct five parking spaces in the corner side yard adjacent to 
South Frontage Road.  The Zoning Ordinance does not permit parking located between a 
building and a street except in a Business (retail) District.  The parking would be for retail 
customers.  The petitioner also proposes to construct a public entrance on the north side of the 
building facing South Frontage Road and I-55.   
 
As noted, front yard parking is common along this section of South Frontage Road.  Also, 
convenient customer parking is desirable if the east half of this building is used for retail sales. In 
order to improve the appearance of front yard parking, staff has recommended and the petitioner 
has agreed to use permeable pavers for all of the new parking and display area.  This would also 
reduce the stormwater management improvements that will be required for the additional parking 
area.  It is also recommended that decorative landscaping be provided throughout the front yard. 
 
Based on the above, staff recommends approval of the variation for front yard parking subject 
to the following conditions: 
 

1. The improvements shall comply with the submitted plans. 
 

2. The surface of the driveways, parking areas, and display area shall utilize permeable 
pavers with a perimeter B6:12 concrete curb.   
 

3. A final landscaping plan shall be submitted for staff review and approval prior to 
issuance of a permit.   







































 
 

 

 
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO:  Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission 
  Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 
FROM: Doug Pollock, AICP 
 
DATE: July 3, 2014 
 
RE:  Board Report for July 7, 2014 Plan Commission Meeting 

 

At its June 9 and June 23, 2014 meetings the following actions were taken by the Board of 
Trustees relative to matters forwarded from the Plan Commission. 

Z-05-2014: 10S265 and 10S231 Vine Street (Pizzuto and Krelina); The Board approved the 
Annexation Agreement for these properties which include a commitment to rezone the property 
upon annexation to the R-2B District. 

S-03-2014; 6900 Veterans Boulevard (CNH); The Board concurred with the Plan Commission 
and approved an Ordinance granting a variation for traffic directional signs. 

PC-05-2014; Annual Appointment of Plan Commission Vice Chairperson; The Board 
approved the Commission’s nomination of Commissioner Greg Scott as Vice Chairperson for a 
one year term expiring on June 9, 2015. 

 



 

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 

STAFF REPORT AND SUMMARY 

 

S-04-2014; 15W150 South Frontage Road (Anthem Memory Care); Requests a variation from 
Section 55.08 of the Sign Ordinance to permit a ground sign with a sign structure exceeding 
the maximum permitted area of 100 square feet.     

 
Prepared For: Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission / Zoning Board of Appeals 
   Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 

Prepared By:  Doug Pollock, AICP 
   Community Development Director 
 

Date of Hearing: July 7, 2014 
 

 

SUMMARY 
 

 
The petitioner seeks to construct a sign for a senior housing development.  The sign would be a 
metal panel attached to a stucco slab on top of a brick base.  The total area of the sign structure is 
counted toward the sign area.  For a building less than 50,000 square feet in an Office District the 
Sign Ordinance limits the total area of a sign structure to 100 square feet.  The proposed sign is 
approximately 130 square feet in area. 
 
The brick base measures almost 14 feet in length, 3 feet in height, and 2 feet in width.  Because it 
exceeds 18 inches in width, all four sides are counted as sign area for a total area of 
approximately 92 square feet.  The stucco slab is 4 feet in height and 9.5 feet in length for an 
area of 38 square feet.  The metal panel extends beyond the stucco slab by 6 inches and adds 
about 1 square foot to the total sign area.  The stucco slab and metal panel are 18 inches in width 
or less.  There is also a lamp post attached to the sign base but staff has not counted that toward 
the sign area.  Based on the above calculations, the total sign area for this sign is approximately 
130 square feet.   
 
The sign would be located on private property adjacent to the IDOT right of way.  The sign 
would be 10 feet from all property lines and the total height (not including the lamp post) is less 
than 8 feet.  The height and setback comply with the Sign Ordinance.   
 
The total sign text area is 14.5 square feet per side.  Most of the sign is a decorative feature.  
Staff suggests that the sign is consistent with the intent of the Sign Ordinance and therefore, staff 
recommends approval of the sign variation.  
 
 
 





 

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 

STAFF REPORT AND SUMMARY 

 

S-05-2014; 60 Shore Drive (Forklift Exchange); Requests variations from the Sign Ordinance 
to permit two signs with a total sign area of 160 square feet. 

 
Prepared For: Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission / Zoning Board of Appeals 
   Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 

Prepared By:  Doug Pollock, AICP 
   Community Development Director 
 

Date of Hearing: July 7, 2014 
 

 

SUMMARY 
 

 
The subject property is located at the southwest corner of Shore Drive and South Frontage Road.  
Concurrent with this sign variation request, the petitioner seeks special use approvals and a 
variation (Z-07-2014).  This sign variation request seeks to replace an existing sign for Brand 
Max Motors (approved by variation in 2013 – S-04-2013) with a new sign for the proposed 
business.  The new sign would be the identical size as the sign it is replacing.  The proposed sign 
is shown on the building elevations for the special use petition. 
 
The Sign Ordinance permits two signs on the property (one on each street frontage) with a 
combined area of 110 square feet.  The variation granted in 2013 allowed the total area of the 
two signs to be up to 160 square feet and allowed both signs to face South Frontage Road rather 
than one on each street frontage.  The 2013 variation was limited to the sign for Brand Max 
Motors and is not transferable to a new business. 
 
The previous sign variation was granted as an accommodation to retail businesses that sought 
identification from I-55.  The proposed sign is consistent with the 2013 approval.  Therefore, 
staff recommends approval of the sign variation to replace the Brand Max Motors sign with a 
wall sign for Forklift Exchange subject to compliance with the submitted plans and all other 
terms and conditions of the 2013 sign variation. 


	07-07-2014 Agenda
	06-02-2014 Minutes
	Z-06-2014 15W150 South Frontage Rd Summary
	z-06-2014 2nd_2014070313130100
	Z-06-2-14 Anthem Memory Plans
	Z-06-2014 Plans
	Z-06-2014 Plans1
	Z-06-2014 Plans2
	Z-06-2014 Plans3

	Z-07-2014 60 Shore Drive Forklift Exchange Summary
	Z-07-2014 60 Shore Dr Designhaus doc
	Z-07-2014 60 Shore Dr Designhaus doc2
	Z-07-2014 60 Shre Dr Zoning Petitions
	Z-07-2014 60 Shore Dr Plans
	Z-07-2014 Plans
	Z-07-2014 Plans1
	Z-07-2014 Plans3
	Z-07-2014 Plans4

	07-07-2014 Board Report
	S-04-2014 15W150 South Frontage Rd Summary
	S-04-2014 Anthem Memory Sign Plans
	S-05-2014 60 Shore Drive Forklift Exchange Summary



